1988

# Garth Youd v. Richard B. Johnson and Howard Lewis & Peterson, a partnership : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

### **JURISDICTION**

The Utah Court of Appeals has jurisdiction over this appeal pursuant to Article VIII, §5 of the Utah Constitution, Utah Code Ann. §78-2a-3(2)(a) and (j) (1953 as amended), and Rule 3(a), Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals.

### **NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS**

This is an appeal from an Order entered by the Honorable George E. Ballif, Fourth Judicial District Court of Utah County, State of Utah, on April 6, 1988, granting Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment and denying Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment.

### **STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW**

1. Does the question of whether Zions had completed the reissuance of the \$10,000 certificate of deposit payable to "Garth Youd" before the time Zions acted to replace the same \$10,000 certificate of deposit with a certificate of deposit payable to "Wilford Youd, Leona Warner and LaRaine Mackley" pursuant to Wilford Youd's instructions, constitute a genuine issue of material fact raised by Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment so as to render the trial court's grant of summary judgment erroneous?

2. Because of his possession and due presentment of the \$10,000 certificate of deposit, was Plaintiff entitled as a matter of law to payment of the \$10,000 certificate pursuant to §70A-3-116 and the terms stated on the face of the certificate?

3. Did W. Youd's "request" to prevent payment to Plaintiff fail to comply with §75-6-101 such that court's grant of summary judgment was erroneous as a matter of law?

4. Did a bailment of the \$10,000 and \$15,000 certificates of deposit exist such that Zions' issuance of new \$10,000 and \$15,000 certificate in the names of W. Youd and his daughters constitutes conversion?

#### **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

##### **1. Nature of the Case**

Plaintiff, Garth Youd, brings this action to recover for Defendants' negligent prosecution of an action on behalf of Plaintiff against Zions First National Bank ("Zions"). The action against Zions was based on Zions' improper payment of two certificates of deposit to Plaintiff's father, Wilford Youd (hereafter "W. Youd"), and his daughters.

## 2. Course of Proceedings

On or about February 26, 1987, Plaintiff filed a Complaint against Defendants alleging that Defendants had negligently represented Plaintiff in an action against Zions and that as a result, Plaintiff was prevented from pursuing his claim against Zions. Pursuant to a Stipulation and Order dated September 9, 1987, Plaintiff and Defendants stipulated that Defendant, Johnson, was negligent in failing to appear at the pre-trial conference and in failing to file an appellate brief. An Order entered by the Fourth Judicial District Court limited the issues in the case to causation and damages.

On or about January 27, 1988, Defendants filed a Motion for Summary Judgment and on or about February 11, 1988, Plaintiff filed a cross Motion for Summary Judgment. The Fourth Judicial District Court heard arguments of counsel on their respective Motions for Summary Judgment at the pre-trial conference on February 26, 1988. On March 21, 1988, the Honorable George E. Ballif issued a Ruling denying Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment and granting Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment. Addendum No. 1. An

Order reflecting the Judge's Ruling was entered on April 6, 1988. Addendum No. 2. Plaintiff filed a Notice of Appeal with the Utah Supreme Court on April 20, 1988. On July 7, 1988, the Utah Supreme Court poured this case over to the Utah Court of Appeals.

### 3. Statement of Facts

#### a. Facts Surrounding Defendants' Negligent Prosecution of the Zions Action

In early 1983, Plaintiff employed Defendant, Johnson, who at the time was an attorney practicing with Defendant law firm, Howard, Lewis and Peterson, to prosecute a civil action against Zions (the "Zions Action"). (Record on Appeal, Garth Youd v. Richard B. Johnson and Howard, Lewis & Peterson, civil no. CV87-457 (hereafter "R."), p. 1, ¶4 and p. 12, ¶1.) Defendants filed a Complaint against Zions on behalf of Plaintiff in the United States District Court in and for the District of Utah, Central Division, on or about November 15, 1983, Garth Youd v. Zions First National Bank, civil no. C83-1368W. (R. 94-103.) Thereafter, Defendants negligently failed to appear at a pre-trial conference in the Zions Action. (R. 24.) As a result of Defendants' failure to appear, the United States District Court in and for the District of Utah, Central Division, entered an Order of Dismissal, dismissing the Complaint in the Zions Action

with prejudice. (R. 108-109.) Defendants filed a Motion to Set Aside Order of Dismissal which was denied by the Honorable David K. Winder on December 20, 1985. (R. 2, 12-13.)

On January 17, 1986, Defendants filed a Notice of Appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit, appealing Judge Winder's Order, Garth Youd v. Zions First National Bank, case no. 86-1143. Thereafter, Defendants negligently failed to file an appellant's brief in the appeal of the Zions Action. (R. 24.) As a consequence, the Clerk of the Court of Appeals ordered that the appeal be dismissed for lack of prosecution. (R. 111.)

On or about February 26, 1987, Plaintiff filed this action against Defendants alleging their negligent representation of Plaintiff in the Zions Action and that, as a result of their negligence, Plaintiff was prevented from pursuing his claim against Zions. (R. 1-3.) Plaintiff and Defendants entered into a Stipulation dated September 9, 1987, that Defendants were negligent in failing to appear at a pre-trial conference and for failing to file and appellate brief in the Zions Action appeal. (R. 24-25.) The Fourth Judicial District Court entered an Order limiting the issues in the case to causation and damages. (R. 26.)

b. Facts of the Zions Action

The Complaint in the Zions Action alleges that Zions was liable to Plaintiff for wrongfully paying two certificates of deposit to W. Youd. (R. 94-103.) The two time certificates of deposit in the Zions Action were issued by Zions and are identified as follows:

1. A six-month time certificate of deposit dated March 6, 1980, in the sum of \$10,000, number 31-600964-6, payable to "Wilford Youd or Garth Youd;" and

2. A six-month time certificate of deposit dated October 27, 1980, in the sum of \$15,000, number 31-616341-9, payable to "Wilford Youd or Garth Youd."

(R. 115-118.) Addendum Nos. 3 and 4. Both certificates state on their face that

THIS CERTIFIES THAT there has been deposited in this Bank the amount of . . . payable to Wilford Youd or Garth Youd . . . interest at a rate of . . . per annum, commencing from . . . and payable to depositor, or if more than one, to either of any said depositors . . . in current funds upon presentation and surrender of this certificate properly endorsed.

The certificates were kept in a safety deposit box at Zions which could be accessed by Plaintiff or his sisters, Leona Warner or LaRaine Mackley. (Deposition of Garth Youd, November 7, 1984 (hereafter "G. Youd Depo."), p. 53, 55.) On February 26, 1982, Plaintiff accessed the above-described safety deposit box and took into his possession both certificates of deposit. Id. at 69-70. On or about September 7, 1982, Plaintiff took the certificates of deposit to the Spanish Fork Branch of Zions. The \$10,000 certificate of deposit had matured a day earlier, on September 6, 1982. (R. 177.) The \$15,000 certificate of deposit was unmatured and would not mature until October 27, 1982. (R. 177.)

Plaintiff instructed Zions' personnel to recover the interest on the \$10,000 certificate of deposit which had been paid paid to Plaintiff's sister, Leona Warner, and to pay that sum to Plaintiff. G. Youd Depo. at 71-72. Plaintiff further gave Zions specific instructions renew the \$10,000 certificate of deposit in his name alone and to place the \$15,000 certificate of deposit which had not yet matured and the reissued \$10,000 certificate of deposit in Plaintiff's personal safety deposit box. Id. at 75. After

Plaintiff endorsed the \$10,000 certificate of deposit, he presented it to Zions and Zions took possession of it and the \$15,000 certificate of deposit. Id. at 74.

In his Memorandum in Opposition to Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment, Plaintiff asserted that Zions completed issuing the \$10,000 certificate of deposit in Plaintiff's name alone. (R. 87.) In support of its assertion, Plaintiff cited depositional testimony of Donna Jensen, who was at the time of the subject events a commercial loan secretary with Zions. (R. 87, 136-140.) In her deposition, Ms. Jensen testified that she remembers having dealt with Plaintiff regarding two certificates of deposit on two occasions. (Deposition of Donna Jensen, May 16, 1984, (hereafter "Jensen Depo.") p. 14-16, 21; Addendum No. 5.) Her testimony indicates that on both occasions, Plaintiff presented a certificate of deposit payable to "Wilford Youd or Garth Youd" and requested that they be renewed in Plaintiff's name only. Id. at 14. Ms. Jensen testified that on both occasions she completed Plaintiff's instructions and filled out a certificate of deposit for the same amount in Plaintiff's name alone. Id. at 14-16, 21, 30.<sup>1</sup> Neither Richard Roach nor Irene Brunson, the two

---

<sup>1</sup> The disposition and location of the \$10,000 certificate

other Zions' employees who were involved in the transaction, disputed Ms. Jensen's testimony that the certificate has been reissued. Deposition of Richard Roach, May 16, 1984, ("Roach Depo."), p. 30-45; Deposition of Irene Brunson, May 16, 1984, ("Brunson Depo."), p. 17-18.

After Plaintiff presented the \$10,000 and \$15,000 certificates of deposit to Zions, Richard Roach, the branch manager of the Spanish Fork Branch of Zions, became aware of Plaintiff's request regarding the certificates. Roach Depo. at 36; Jensen Depo. at 22-26. Though the exact time is not certain, Mr. Roach met with Leona Warner, W. Youd's daughter, who informed Mr. Roach that the "family" was concerned about the expenses which W. Youd would incur later in his life. Roach Depo. at 38-41. Mr. Roach then requested that Ms. Warner have W. Youd contact him. Roach Depo. at 39.

Apparently responding to Mr. Roach's request, Wilford Youd called Mr. Roach at the bank. Roach Depo. at 42. Mr. Roach informed W. Youd that Plaintiff had made a request to remove W. Youd's name from of the \$10,000 and \$15,000 certificates of deposit, and to put the certificates in Plaintiff's name alone. Mr. Roach, however, did not know

---

of deposit issued in Plaintiff's name alone is unknown. Roach Depo. at 32-24.

whether the process of reissuing the \$10,000 certificate to Plaintiff had been completed. Roach Depo. at 36, 37, 42-43. W. Youd instructed Mr. Roach to take Plaintiff's name off both certificates of deposit and to place the certificates in the names of W. Youd's and his two daughters, Leona Warner and LaRaine Mackley, and to not pay the \$10,000 certificate of deposit to Plaintiff under any circumstances. Roach Depo. at 44. Mr. Roach agreed to carry out W.Youd's request. Id.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

##### ARGUMENT I, Points 1 and 2

Summary judgment is proper only where there is no genuine issue of material fact and where the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. In considering a Motion for Summary Judgment, a court should view the evidence in a light most favorable to the party opposing the motion.

In this case, there is clearly a genuine issue of material fact. The deposition of a Zions' employee indicates that Zions immediately carried out Plaintiff's instructions to reissue the \$10,000 certificate of deposit as a single party account in the name of Plaintiff alone, immediately after receiving the instructions. This testi-

mony conflicts with Defendants' assertion that the \$10,000 certificate remained a multiple-party account, payable to "Wilford Youd or Garth Youd."

The resulting question of fact is material for the reasons that if the \$10,000 certificate of deposit had been renewed in Plaintiff's name alone, §75-6-112 does not apply to protect Zions from liability, and Zions may be rendered liable to Plaintiff for conversion of the certificate of deposit. Accordingly, this case should be remanded to the trial court for trial on the issue of whether the \$10,000 certificate of deposit had been renewed in Plaintiff's name alone as a single-party account.

**ARGUMENT II, Point 1**

If the court accepts the trial court's finding that there was no genuine issue of material fact and that Zions had not reissued the \$10,000 certificate in Plaintiff's name alone, §§75-6-108 and 75-6-112, still do not apply to protect Zions from liability for three reasons. First, Plaintiff was entitled to immediate payment of the \$10,000 certificate of deposit, in the form of a reissued certificate, pursuant to §70A-3-116 of the Uniform Commercial Code. That section establishes that an alternate payee on an instrument who has possession of the instrument is

entitled to payment of the instrument. Plaintiff was entitled to immediate payment for the additional reason that he complied with the payment requirements clearly stated on the face of the certificate.

Because Zions refused to accept Plaintiff's due presentment, Plaintiff acquired an immediate right of recourse under §70A-5-307, as well as a cause of action for breach of contract. Section 75-6-112 has absolutely no application to the question of whether a financial institution must pay a duly presented and matured certificate of deposit. That section applies to protect the financial institutions from liability only after payment has been made on a duly presented multiple-party instrument.

**ARGUMENT II, Point 2**

The second reason why Plaintiff is entitled to recover against Zions as a matter of law is that, W. Youd failed to make a "proper request" as required by §§75-6-108 and 75-6-101. Sections 75-6-108 and 75-6-101 require that in order for a financial institution to be relieved of liability for payment of a multiple-party account, it must have received a "proper request" for payment. "Proper request" is defined as a request which complies with the conditions of the account, which in this case are 1) pre-

sentment, 2) endorsement, and 3) surrender of the certificate. W. Youd did not present the certificate, endorse the certificate or surrender the certificate, but merely made an oral request over the telephone to change the payee on the certificate of deposit. Because W. Youd failed to make a proper request, Zions should not have complied with his instructions and should have paid the certificates of deposit pursuant to Plaintiff's instructions. Accordingly, Zions should not have prevailed as a matter of law.

ARGUMENT II, Point 3

Finally, Zions is subject to liability for Zions' conversion and negligent handling of the \$10,000 and \$15,000 certificates of deposit. Plaintiff's entrusting of the certificates of deposit to Zions gave rise to a bailee-bailor relationship which obligated Zions to exercise due care in complying with Plaintiff's instructions. In complete disregard of Plaintiff's instructions to renew the \$10,000 certificate and place both certificates of deposit in Plaintiff's safety deposit box, Zions acted to extinguish Plaintiff's ownership interest in both certificates and replace the certificates with certificates in the names of

W. Youd and his daughters. For this additional reason, the trial court's grant of summary judgment was erroneous as a matter of law.

#### ARGUMENT I

##### BECAUSE A GENUINE ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT EXISTED, THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN GRANTING DEFENDANTS' MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Rule 56(c), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, states that

summary judgment shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law.

(Emphasis added.) The summary judgment procedure is intended to avoid the time and expense of litigation where the facts are undisputed and there is no issue of law. Rich v. McGovern, 551 P.2d 1266, 1267-1268 (Utah 1976); Western Pacific Transport Co. v. Beehive State Agricultural Co-Op., 497 P.2d 854, 855 (Utah 1979). However, summary judgment is a drastic remedy and should be granted with extreme care. Housley v. Annaconda Co., 527 P.2d 390, 393 (Utah 1967).

In determining whether a genuine issue of material fact exists, the trial court must evaluate the pleadings, affidavits and depositions on file in the case in a light most favorable to the party opposing summary judgment. Frisbey v. K & K Construction Co., 676 P.2d 387, 389 (Utah 1984). If there is any doubt or uncertainty whether a question of fact exists, the doubt must be resolved in favor of the party opposing the motion. Id. If a court grants summary judgment where there is a doubt as to whether a question of fact exists, the opposing party is unjustly denied the opportunity to conduct discovery and present additional evidence to resolve the question. Furthermore, unjustified granting of summary judgment fails the goal of avoiding unnecessary litigation and instead results in even greater expenditures. Western Pacific Transport Co., 597 P.2d at 855.

In ruling on Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment, the trial court concluded that no genuine issue of material fact existed between the parties. (R. 195.) However, the court contradicted its conclusion on page three of the ruling by acknowledging that Plaintiff did dispute one of Defendants' factual assertions. (R. 196.)

Defendants' arguments, as outlined in their Memorandum Supporting Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment, are premised on the fact Zions had not reissued the \$10,000 certificate of deposit in Plaintiff's name alone at the time W. Youd requested that the certificate be put in his and his daughters' names.<sup>2</sup> (R. 43-47, 179-183). Contravening Defendants' representation of the facts, Plaintiff asserted in his Motion in Opposition to Summary Judgment that the reissuance of the \$10,000 certificate of deposit had been completed before W. Youd instructed Zions to not make payment to Plaintiff. (R. 87.) In support of this assertion, Plaintiff cited depositions of the Zions employee most involved in the transaction indicating that the \$10,000 certificate of deposit was reissued in the name of Plaintiff alone before W. Youd contacted the bank. (R. 87.)

---

<sup>2</sup> Defendants even entitled one of their arguments, "The Certificates of Deposit Were 'Joint Accounts' Under Utah Law," clearly implying that the certificates of deposit were never reissued as a single party account. (R. 43.) Additionally, Defendants' statement of fact in its Memorandum in Support of Summary Judgment assumes that the \$10,000 certificate of deposit was not reissued in Plaintiff's name alone, prior to W. Youd's instructions to do otherwise. (R. 39-40.) Finally, Defendants argued in their Memorandum Opposing Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment that Zions followed W. Youd's instructions and, impliedly, not those of Plaintiff. (R. 179.)

Donna Jensen, in her deposition of May 16, 1984, testified that one of her normal duties as commercial loan secretary with Zions was the issuance and reissuance of certificates of deposit. Jensen Depo. at 6. She further testified that she dealt with Plaintiff on two occasions regarding certificates of deposit payable to "Wilford Youd or Garth Youd." Id. at 20. On each occasion, Plaintiff presented Ms. Jensen with a certificate of deposit payable to "Wilford Youd or Garth Youd" and instructed her to reissue it in Plaintiff's name alone. Id. at 12.

The following testimony of Donna Jensen indicates that she complied with Plaintiff's instructions and completed the physical process of reissuing a new certificate of deposit in Plaintiff's name alone:

QUESTION: And his [Garth Youd's] simple instruction to you was simply to do what with the time certificate?

JENSEN: He wanted to renew it and just have it put in his name.

QUESTION: What did you say?

JENSEN: I did it.

QUESTION: And did you take a time certificate he had furnished you and fill out another time certificate that would be in the same

amount with interest in his name only?

JENSEN: Yes.

Jensen Depo. at 14. Plaintiff cited this testimony, together with testimony on page 21 of Ms. Jensen's deposition, in his Memorandum in Opposition to Summary Judgment. (R. 87.) Additional testimony by Ms. Jensen, not cited by Plaintiff, further supports the fact that the certificate of deposit had been reissued. Jensen Depo. at 30.

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