1988

## Youd v. Johnson : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In order to prevail in an action for legal malpractice, the plaintiff must establish all elements of the cause of action. Failure to prove causation or damages bars recovery despite an admission of negligence on the part of the defendants. Youd is

barred by law from recovering against Zions and therefore has no damages, so summary judgment in defendants' favor is proper.

The \$15,000.00 Certificate of Deposit was not mature, was not presented for payment, and could not be paid to Youd on September 7, 1982. The fact that the owner of the Certificate, Wilford Youd, later chose to have the Certificate reissued without Garth Youd's name on it does not give rise to a cause of action by Garth Youd against Zions. Youd could not recover under any theory with respect to the \$15,000 Certificate. The issues in this case are properly limited to the disposition of the \$10,000.00 Certificate.

Utah Code Ann. § 75-6-112 provides an absolute discharge of any claims Youd could assert against Zions concerning the disposition of the \$10,000.00 Certificate. Zions received instructions from both named beneficiaries, and chose to honor the Certificate's owner's instructions. This section discharges Zions from any liability for making that decision.

Similarly, there is no genuine issue of material fact concerning the reissuance of the \$10,000.00 Certificate. Youd now attempts to create an issue of fact by relying upon the testimony of a Zions' employee who claimed that she had reissued a certificate in Youd's name and given it back to him before he left the bank. It is not clear that this testimony refers to the Certificate involved in this case. If it does, it is contradicted by Youd's own testimony as well as by the testimony of the other Zions' employees. Even assuming as we must that the employee's

testimony is true, Zions would still be entitled to summary judgment because Youd would have had the \$10,000.00 Certificate in his possession and issued in his name alone, and no claim that Zions had not followed his directions could arise. The trial judge properly found that there was no genuine issue of material fact concerning this issue.

Plaintiff's reliance on the presentment provisions of the U.C.C. and those contained in the Certificates of Deposit is also misplaced. As noted above, the \$15,000.00 Certificate was not mature and not eligible for payment or presentment at the time Youd was in the bank. The \$10,000.00 Certificate was mature, but Youd did not request present payment. Rather, he instructed the bank to recover the interest it had paid on the Certificate to Youd's sisters and to issue a new Certificate in his name alone for the current principal plus the interest recovered. Since there was no presentment for payment, the U.C.C. provisions upon which plaintiff relies are not applicable, nor are the provisions of the Certificate of Deposit quoted by plaintiff.

Plaintiff's claim that Zions violated a bailment he created concerning the Certificates of Deposit is without merit. The duty of a bailee also runs to the true owner of the property. It is undisputed that under Utah law, Youd's father, Wilford Youd, was the owner of both Certificates of Deposit. Zions' actions of which plaintiff complains were merely to carry out the wishes of Youd's father, Wilford Youd, in reissuing the Certificates in the name of Wilford Youd and the plaintiff's sisters, Leona Warner and

LaRaine Mackey. Zions had no duty running to the plaintiff which superceded its duty owed to the owner, Wilford Youd.

Zions' actions do not subject it to liability to the plaintiff. Accordingly, Zions would have prevailed in the original federal district court action and defendants' negligence in representing the plaintiff did not cause plaintiff any damage. For these reasons, the Court's ruling of summary judgment in favor of the defendants is proper and should be affirmed.

#### ARGUMENT

I. PLAINTIFF MUST ESTABLISH ALL ELEMENTS OF A LEGAL MALPRACTICE CLAIM TO PREVAIL.

The plaintiff in a legal malpractice action must prove each and every one of the following elements in order to establish the cause of action:

1. That an attorney-client relationship existed;
2. That the attorney had a duty to the client;
3. That the attorney failed to perform the duty;
4. That the client suffered damages; and
5. That the attorney's negligence proximately caused the damage to the client.

Stangland v. Brock, 109 Wash.2d 675, 747 P.2d 464 (1987); Phillips v. Clancey, 152 Ariz. 415, 733 P.2d 300 (Ct. App. 1986); Chocktoot v. Smith, 280 Or. 567, 571 P.2d 1255 (1977); R. Mallen and V. Levit, Legal Malpractice, § 657 (2d Ed. 1981) (hereinafter referred to as "Legal Malpractice").

In a case such as this, where the alleged error is an omission, the test of causation is: Had the attorney performed the act, would the plaintiff have benefited? Dunn v. McKay, Burton, McMurray & Thurman, 584 P.2d 894, 895 (Utah 1978) (appropriate to inquire as to what the plaintiff's position would have been if the attorney had performed the act properly); see also Young v. Bridwell, 20 Utah 2d 332, 437 P.2d 686, 689 (1968); Legal Malpractice, § 102. This inquiry is referred to as "a suit within a suit." Chocktoot v. Smith, 571 P.2d at 1257.

In this case, there is no dispute concerning the existence of the attorney-client relationship and defendants have admitted that they were negligent in representing the plaintiff in the underlying action. Therefore, the plaintiff must establish the final elements of damages and causation in order to recover in this case. These elements are established by examining the "suit within a suit" and what would have happened if the federal district court action had been decided on the merits.

The manner in which the plaintiff can establish what should have transpired in the underlying action necessarily depends upon the nature of the attorney's error. If the action never took place, as where it was barred by a statute of limitations or concluded by a default judgment, as in this case, the plaintiff will be required to recreate, i.e., litigate, an action which was never tried. Legal Malpractice § 656.

Recreating the underlying action involves calling and examining those persons who would have been parties and witnesses and presenting

the demonstrative and documentary evidence which would have been presented but for the attorney's negligence. This procedure of presenting the evidence which should have been offered at the trial of the underlying action is known as a 'suit within a suit' or 'trial within a trial.' This is the accepted and traditional means of resolving issues involved in the underlying proceedings in a legal malpractice action.

Id. See Kessler v. Gray, 77 Cal. App. 3d 284, 143 Cal. Rptr. 496 (Ct. App. 1978); Michael Kovach, P.A. v. Pearce, 427 So. 2d 1128, 1129 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 1983), pet. den., 434 So. 2d 888 (Fla. 1983); Fuschetti v. Bierman, 128 N.J. Super. 290, 319 A.2d 781, 785 (Super. Ct. Law Div. 1974); Lewandowski v. Continental Casualty Co., 88 Wis. 2d 271, 276 N.W. 2d 284, 289 (1979). In other words, the client must show that he would have won the first suit as one step in order to win the second one. Harding v. Bell, 265 Or. 202, 508 P.2d 216, 217 (1973).

II. PLAINTIFF CAN OBTAIN NO RECOVERY AGAINST ZIONS AS A MATTER OF LAW, AND THEREFORE, PLAINTIFF IS UNABLE TO ESTABLISH EITHER CAUSATION OR DAMAGES.

In the Zions action, plaintiff claimed that he and his father, Wilford Youd, were the named payees of two Certificates of Deposit issued by Zions in the amount of \$15,000.00 and \$10,000.00, respectively. Plaintiff testified that on September 7, 1982, he took the two Certificates of Deposit to Zions' Spanish Fork Branch and instructed Zions to recover the interest on the \$10,000.00 Certificate of Deposit, roll the interest into the principal, and issue a new Certificate of Deposit in the plaintiff's name. Then Zions was to place the new Certificate of Deposit and the



(unmatured) \$15,000.00 Certificate of Deposit into plaintiff's safety deposit box. Garth Youd Deposition at pp. 70-75, R. 62-67. Plaintiff claimed in the Zions action that Zions failed to follow his instructions and acted wrongfully in reissuing the Certificates of Deposit in the names of his father and his two sisters.

Zions had an absolute defense to the claims asserted by plaintiff in the Zions action.

A. The Certificates of Deposit Were "Multiple-Party Accounts" Under Utah Law.

Utah Code Ann. § 75-6-101(1) defines "account" as follows:

"Account" means a contract of deposit of funds between a depositor and a financial institution and includes a checking account, savings account, certificate of deposit, share account and other like arrangement.

(Emphasis supplied.)

Utah Code Ann. § 75-6-101(4) defines "joint account" as follows:

"Joint account" means an account payable on request to one or more of two or more parties whether or not mention is made of any right of survivorship.

Utah Code Ann. § 75-6-101(5) defines "multiple-party account" to include joint accounts as defined under § 75-6-101(4).

Under the terms of § 75-6-101(1), (4) and (5), the Certificates of Deposit issued by Zions to plaintiff and his father were multiple-party accounts.

B. Zions' Conduct Discharges It from Liability for Plaintiff's Claim in the Zions Action.

Utah Code Ann. § 75-6-108 provides:

Financial institutions may enter into multiple-party accounts to the same extent that they may enter into single-party accounts. Any multiple-party account may be paid, on request of any one or more of the parties. A financial institution shall not be required to inquire as to the source of funds received for deposit to a multiple-party account or to inquire as to the proposed application of any sum withdrawn from an account, for purposes of establishing net contributions.

(Emphasis supplied.)

Utah Code Ann. § 75-6-112 provides in pertinent part:

Payment made pursuant to Section 75-6-108 . . . discharges the financial institution from all claims for amounts so paid whether or not the payment is consistent with the beneficial ownership of the account as between parties . . . . The protection here given does not extend to payments made after a financial institution has received written notice from any party able to request present payment to the effect that withdrawals in accordance with the terms of the account should not be permitted. Unless the notice is withdrawn by the person giving it, the successor of any deceased party must concur in any demand for withdrawal if the financial institution is to be protected under this section. No other notice or any other information shown to have been available to a financial institution shall affect its right to the protection provided here. The protection here provided shall have no bearing on the rights of parties in disputes between themselves or their successors concerning the beneficial ownership of funds in, or withdrawn from, multiple party accounts.

(Emphasis supplied.)

Only one Utah case has discussed the aforementioned statutory provisions. In Smith v. Utah Central Credit Union, 727 P.2d 219 (Utah 1986), the plaintiff brought an action to recover funds deposited to a joint savings account and withdrawn by his wife. The plaintiff alleged that the credit union failed to honor his telephone request that no money be withdrawn by his wife without his approval. The trial court entered judgment against plaintiff. On appeal, the Utah Supreme Court cited the provisions of Utah Code Ann. §§ 75-6-108 and 75-6-112 and affirmed the judgment against the plaintiff, relieving the credit union of liability and stating that the plaintiff's oral statements to the credit union were not "written notice" under § 75-6-112. Here plaintiff complains that his oral instructions to Zions were not followed, and that Zions' reissuance of the Certificates at Wilford Youd's request entitles him to recovery. Just as in Smith, the financial institution's actions should be protected and judgment affirmed.

In plaintiff's deposition taken in the Zions action, plaintiff admitted that his instructions to Zions were oral. Garth Youd deposition at pp. 72-75, R. 64-67. Therefore, there is no possible way the exception in § 75-6-112 concerning receipt of written notice from any party "able to request present payment" applies. No written notice was given, and Youd's own testimony shows that in any event his instructions were not to refuse "withdrawals in accordance with the terms of the account," and so would not trigger the exception.

In the Zions action, Richard B. Roach, Branch Manager of Zions, testified that on September 7, 1982, he had a conversation with Dona Jensen and Irene K. Brunson, two employees of Zions, who informed him of plaintiff's requests. He further testified, that on that same day, he was contacted by Leona Warner, the daughter of Wilford Youd, who told him that the family was concerned about medical expenses Wilford Youd might incur later in life and that that was not the time to be dividing his money among the children. She also told him that Wilford Youd was concerned about what was happening with his money. Mr. Roach asked Leona to have Wilford Youd call him. On September 7, Wilford Youd telephoned Mr. Roach who told him about Garth's request. In response, Wilford Youd told Mr. Roach to take Garth's name off of the Certificates of Deposit, and to have the Certificates of Deposit reissued in Wilford Youd's name and the names of his two daughters. Richard Roach Deposition at pp. 36-45, R. 71-80. Zions complied with the request of Wilford Youd, and reissued the Certificates of Deposit in his name and the names of his two daughters.

Under § 75-6-108, Zions had the right to follow the instructions of Wilford Youd. Section 75-6-112 discharges Zions from all of plaintiff's claims for following the request of Wilford Youd.

C. Wilford Youd's Request for Reissuance of the Certificate of Deposit was a "Proper Request".

Plaintiff argues that Wilford Youd's telephone instructions to Richard Roach do not constitute a "request" as

defined in Utah Code Ann. § 75-6-101(12), and so Zions cannot enjoy the protection of § 75-6-112. Appellant's Brief at 29-31.

Section 75-6-101(12) defines a request to be:

A proper request for withdrawal, or a check or order for payment, which complies with all conditions of the account, including special requirements concerning necessary signatures and regulations of the financial institution . . . .

Wilford Youd requested Zions to reissue the two Certificates of Deposit in his name and the names of his two daughters. Roach Deposition, pp. 42-44, R. 77-79. Zions complied with that request. The Certificates of Deposit do not specify any conditions for their reissuance, and plaintiff has failed to establish that any conditions for reissuance exist under the terms of the Certificates, or under any laws or regulations concerning financial institutions. Zions had a practice and procedure permitting a party to a joint account to orally request the change of the names on the account, without endorsement. Roach Deposition, pp. 47-48, R. 151-152. Zions followed Wilford Youd's request based on this policy and procedure. Id. Therefore, Wilford Youd's request met all the "conditions of the account" as required by § 75-6-101(12) and was a proper request, entitling Zions to the protection of § 75-6-112.

Section 75-6-112 protects a financial institution from claims for not dividing up the proceeds of a joint account according to its beneficial ownership. Here Zions was faced with conflicting claims by each named payee. It could have thrown up its hands and paid the money into court. The court then would

have looked to who provided the funds, i.e., who was the owner of the account pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 75-6-103(1), and decided in favor of the owner, Wilford Youd. Zions should not and cannot be held liable for coming to the same conclusion a court would have.

III. THERE IS NO GENUINE ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT CONCERNING THE REISSUANCE OF THE \$10,000.00 CERTIFICATE.

In plaintiff's Appeal Brief he claims that the district court erred in not finding that there was a genuine issue of material fact concerning the alleged reissuance of the \$10,000.00 Certificate in his name alone. It is interesting to note that while the plaintiff did mention the testimony which supports this claim below, he argued instead for summary judgment in his favor and that there were no genuine issues of material fact. Plaintiff's claim that there is a genuine issue of material fact as to whether the \$10,000.00 Certificate was reissued in his name alone is based upon the testimony of Dona Jensen. Deposition of Dona Jensen at pp. 14-17, R. 137-140. Her testimony was that on two separate occasions Youd came into the bank with a certificate of deposit of \$10,000.00 or more and requested that the interest be added to the principal and a new certificate be issued in his name alone. Jensen testified that on both occasions she reissued the new certificate, handed it to Youd, who then left the bank. She also testified that sometime after these two certificates had been reissued, she was advised by Richard Roach, the branch manager, that he had talked to Wilford Youd and that a problem had

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